
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Corporate and Customer 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
- Efficiency Gains Sub-Group 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda and Reports  
 

For consideration on  
 
 

Friday, 24th August 2007 
 

 
In Committee Room 1, Town Hall, Chorley  

 

At 10.00 am 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC QUESTIONS/SPEAKING AT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
MEETINGS 
 

• Questions must be submitted to the Democratic Services Section by no later than midday, 
two working days before the day of the meeting to allow time to prepare appropriate 
responses and investigate issues if necessary. 

• A maximum period of 3 minutes will be allowed for a question from a member of the public 
on an item on the agenda.  A maximum period of 30 minutes to be allocated for public 
questions if necessary at each meeting of the Panel.  This will provide an opportunity for 
members of the public to raise and ask questions on any issue falling within the remit of the 
Panel. 

 



Chief Executive’s Office 

Continued…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Ruth Hawes  
Direct Dial: (01257) 515118 
E-mail address: ruth.hawes@chorley.gov.uk 
Date: 15 August 2007 
 

Chief Executive:  Donna Hall 
 

 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
CORPORATE AND CUSTOMER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL - 
EFFICIENCY GAINS SUB-GROUP - FRIDAY, 24TH AUGUST 2007 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Corporate and Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel - 
Efficiency Gains Sub-Group to be held in Committee Room 1, Town Hall, Chorley on Friday, 24th 
August 2007 commencing at 10.00 am. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Apologies for absence   
 
2. Declarations of Any Interests   
 
 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal interest in respect of 

matters contained in this agenda. If the interest arises only as result of your membership 
of another public body or one to which you have been appointed by the Council then you 
only need to declare it if you intend to speak. 
  
If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, you must withdraw from the meeting. 
Normally you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may remain in the 
room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave immediately. In either case you 
must not seek to improperly influence a decision on the matter. 
 

3. Public Questions   
 
 Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a question(s) on an 

item(s) on the agenda will be asked to put their question(s) to the Panel. Each member of 
the public will be allowed to ask one supplementary question within his/her allocated 3 
minutes.   
 

4. Overview and Scrutiny Inquiry - A Background to the National Efficiency Agenda  
(Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 Report of the Director of Finance (enclosed) 

 
5. Inquiry Documentation  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
 The Sub-Group are asked to consider the enclosed draft scoping document, project plan, 

information checklist and witness checklist.   
 

Town Hall 
Market Street 

Chorley 
Lancashire 

PR7 1DP 



 

6. Dates of Future Meetings   
 
 The Sub-Group will agree the dates for the future meetings.   

 
7. Any other item(s) that the Chair decides is/are urgent   
 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 
 
Distribution 
 
1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Corporate and Customer Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel (Councillor Mrs Stella Walsh (Chair) and Councillors Henry Caunce, Michael Davies, 
Mike Devaney, David Dickinson, Keith Iddon, Kevin Joyce, Thomas McGowan, 
Mick Muncaster and Geoffrey Russell) for attendance. 

 
2. Agenda and reports to James Douglas (Business Improvement Manager) and Ruth Hawes 

(Assistant Democratic Services Officer) for attendance. 
 
3. Agenda and reports to Paul Morris (Deputy Chief Executive) for information. 
 

This information can be made available to you in larger print 

or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.  

Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service. 
 

 
 

 

 

01257 515822 

01257 515823 



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2007  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Finance  
Corporate and Customer Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel 
24/08/07 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY INQUIRY – A BACKGROUND TO 

THE NATIONAL EFFICIENCY AGENDA 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To provide members of the Scrutiny Panel with a background picture of the national 
Efficiency Agenda and the progress made to date at Chorley on achieving the targets set 
for us by the Government. 

 
2. To highlight the challenges ahead as we prepare for the demands of the forthcoming 

comprehensive spending review 2007. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

3. That the report be noted and included in the Documentary evidence gathered as part of 
the Scrutiny Inquiry. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
4. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Put Chorley at the heart of regional 
economic development in the 
central Lancashire sub region 

 Improved access to public services √ 

Improving equality of opportunity 
and life chance 

 Develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live 

 

Involving People in their 
Communities 

 Ensure Chorley is a performing 
Organisation 

√ 

 

GERSHON REVIEW 
 
5. In August 2003, the Prime Minister and Chancellor of the Exchequer asked Sir Peter 

Gershon to undertake a review of public sector efficiency.  It focused on the Government’s 
key objective to ‘release resources to fund the frontline services that meet the public’s 
highest priorities by improving the efficiency of service delivery’.  Sir Peter Gershon and 
his team worked closely with departments and other stakeholders, and published his 
report in July 2004. 

 
6. The report identified the opportunity to make £21.5 billion of sustainable efficiency gains 

across the public sector in 2007/078.  Of this total at least £6.45 billion would be achieved 
by local government in England – equivalent to 7.5 per cent of its 2004/05 baseline 
expenditure.  This figure was adopted through the 2004 Spending Review as the official 
target for local government. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 1



WHAT IS AN EFFICIENCY GAIN 
 
Efficiency gains may be cashable or non-cashable 
 

7. Cashable efficiencies release cash whilst maintaining outputs and allow the resources that 
are released to be diverted to other services or to hold down council tax increases.  Non-
cashable efficiency gains occur when productivity increases, either for the same resource 
inputs or a proportionately smaller increase in resource inputs. 

 
8. Therefore, looking at how efficiency gains might be achieved, reducing inputs (money, 

people, assets) for the same outputs and reducing prices (procurement, labour costs) for 
the same outputs are both cashable efficiency gains.  There is a direct financial saving or 
benefit with money released that can be spent elsewhere or recycled within a service to 
deliver better results. 

 
9. Where greater outputs (extra service, productivity) are achieved for the same inputs or 

proportionately more outputs for an increase in resources then volume-based non-
cashable efficiency gains are secured.  In this case there is no direct financial saving or 
benefit that is released for recycling or keeping council tax down.  Improvements in 
service quality for the same resources would also be non-cashable; for more information 
see below. 

Example: Cashable or non-cashable? 
Authority B handles 1,000 benefit applications with 10 staff at a cost of £350,000 in 
2004/5.  Following a review of its internal processes, it is able to either: 
(a) Handle the same number of benefit applications with 9 staff; or 
(b) Handle 1,100 benefit applications, but still with 10 staff. 
(a)  This is a cashable gain equal to 
£35,000 (the resource – salary and 
overhead costs – released by no longer 
redeploying the 10th person away from 
this area of work). 

(b)  This is a non-cashable gain equal to 
£35,000 (the productivity improvement is 
equivalent to engaging at 11th person in 
this area of work, but no resources have 
been released for reallocation). 

  
PROGRESS AT CHORLEY 
 
10. Our approach had been strategic right from the word go and back in 2003 we 

commissioned a high level study aimed at setting out how we could use technology to e-
enable both people and processes within the organisation. 

 
11. The e-workforce programme was born in early 2004 and has made a significant impact 

realising substantial efficiency gain for the Council. 
 
12. Our targets for the 3 year period covered by the SRO4 (5/6; 6.7; 7/8) was £1.29 million.  

By the end of 6/7 we had reported savings amounting to £1.88 million of which £1.35 was 
cashable (Authorities who had started early on the efficiency agenda like ourselves were 
allowed to count gains in 2004/5 so that we were not disadvantaged in relation to other 
less progressive Councils). 

 
13. Major contributors in the first three years: 
 
 ● Reduction in support services costs through major changes to back office 

processes ie new Procure2Pay system; Flexitime and Annual Leave system, 
Committee Admin System. 

 
 ● Improved procurement. 
 
 ● Revamping the Internet 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 2



 
 ● Restructuring to focus on priority areas. 
 
14. The table below sets out for members the annual totals of cashable and non-cashable 

gains broken down into the relevant efficiency gain theme. 
 

  Cashable Non-cashable Total 

     

Efficiency Gain Themes     

     

Corporate Services  303,342 28,428 331,770 

Procurement  503,103 0 503,103 

Productive Time  103,666 212,639 316,305 

Transactions  359,214 289,926 649,140 

Cultural  87,400 0 87,400 

     

Total  1,356,725 530,993 1,887,718 

 
THE FUTURE 
 
15. Members will note that we have already significantly exceeded our efficiency target with 

the final financial year still to be recorded. This is of course good news however the focus 
must now be on the future and we need to start putting plans in place to set out our vision 
for achieving the likely, even more demanding targets, which will be asked of us during 
2008-2011. These are expected to be at least 3% per annum all of which must be 
cashable 

 
16. Our preparation has already started this year with the establishment of our strategic 

framework for delivering, managing and improving value for money. It was pleasing to see 
our progress as an authority that delivers on value for money reflected in our Use of 
Resources – Value for Money theme score for 2006 where the Audit Commission 
allocated us a score of 4, one of only 3 districts in the country to achieve this. 

 
17. Our Value for Money Strategic framework also sets out a 3-year programme of Value for 

money reviews commencing September 2007. These reviews will be critical if we are to 
be successful in achieving the future targets. 

 
KEY ACTIONS IN 2007/8 
 
18. 2007/8 is the final financial year of the current spending review period and I have set out 

below the efficiency areas we intend to concentrate on that were included in the forward 
looking statement for 2007/8 submitted to the government in April this year.  

 
 ● Review our Procurement Strategy to re-prioritise our focus in the light of National 

Guidance. 
 
 ● Implementing our strategic approach to VFM, including carrying out a major VFM 

service review during 2007/8 as part of a 3year programme 
 
 ● Implementing our recently approved Partnerships Framework to strengthen 

governance arrangements and ensure effective delivery of objectives through 
partnerships. 

 
 ● Implement a Corporate Contract Management system and ensure delivery of 

£100k anticipated savings through the outsourced Property Services Contract. 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 3



 ● Continuing transfer of key services to the Telephone Contact and implementation 
of an integrated CRM system. 

 
 ● Providing training and awareness to all levels of the organisation on the efficiency 

agenda as part of a drive to embed a VFM culture at the Council. 
 
 ● Implementation of the outcomes from the Shared Services collaboration project 

with South Ribble Borough Council and the RCE on financial and related services. 
 
 ● Ensure the revamped Business Improvement Planning process is effectively 

integrated to the Council’s overall financial and performance management cycle. 
 
 ● Implementation of the change programme resulting from the Business Process 

Architecture project being undertaken on behalf of the CLG. 
 
 ● Engaging in joint procurements/collaboration to deliver savings i.e. IT through e-

action; telephony through partnership with neighbouring Council. 
 
 ● Real focus on migration of customers to cheaper access channels following the 

new website 'go live ' in April 2007 
 
  These are of course important and if they are fully achieved will take the final efficiency 

savings total to near the £2.5 million mark. However, as mentioned earlier in this report a 
strategic focus on the next 3 years will be imperative if we are to be confident of delivering 
the target savings set by the government to be delivered during 2008-2011 

 

 
 
GARY HALL 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 

 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

James Douglas, Business 
Improvement Manager 

5203 14 August 2007 FINREP/1408LM1 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 4



Draft scoping document  

14/08/07 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY INQUIRY PROJECT OUTLINE 
 

Review Topic:  
Efficiency gains at Chorley Council during the 
2004 and 2007 spending review period. 
 

Investigation by:  
Corporate and Customer Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel. 
 

 Type: Inquiry. 
 

Objectives:   
1. To assess the performance of the Council 

in achieving the efficiency targets set by 
the Government. 

2. To identify the Council’s future plans to 
tackle the efficiency agenda.  

3. To ensure that efficiency gains do not 
adversely impact on our customers.   

 

Desired Outcomes:   
1. To identify any lessons learned so far and to 

assess how these can be applied to the future 
efficiency agenda.  

2. To ensure that Chorley Council is on target to 
achieve it’s efficiency savings. 

3. To ensure suitable monitoring arrangements 
are in place to enable action if required.   

 

Terms of Reference:   
1. To examine the Annual Efficiency Statement sent to the Government. 
2. To consider areas, excluding the Contact Centre, where efficiency gains have been anticipated 

but not yet achieved. 
3. To examine the procedure and methodology for measuring and driving the efficiency agenda.   
 

Key Issues:  
1. Is the Council achieving the current 

efficiency targets? 
2. How does the Council identify / report 

efficiency gains? 
3. To compare performance with other 

CIPFA Family Authorities and private 
companies providing Local Authority 
services. 

 

Risks:   
1. Having expectations beyond the capacity to 

deliver.   
 

Venue(s):   Timescale:   
 

Town Hall, Market Street, Chorley  Start: July 2007 
 

 Finish: February 2008 
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 5



 

14/08/07 

Information Requirements and Sources: 
 
Documents/evidence: (what/why?) 

1. Annual Efficiency Statements (AES). 
2. Annual Use of Resources Assessments. 
3. Value for Money (VFM) Strategy. 
4. Customer Access Strategy. 
5. Relevant reports to Chorley’s Executive Cabinet. 
 
Witnesses: (who, why?) 

1. Director of Finance. 
2. Deputy Chief Executive. 
3. Directors / managers as identified through the Inquiry. 
4. Other Local Authority officers as identified through the Inquiry. 
 
Consultation/Research: (what, why, who?) 

1. Audit Commission family group. 
2. Websites:  
 Audit Commission,  
 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA),  
 Association for Public Service Excellence (APSE). 
 
Site Visits: (where, why, when?) 

As identified through the Inquiry. 
 

Officer Support: 
Lead Officer:  
James Douglas (Business Improvement 
Manager). 
 
Policy and Performance Officer: 
Sarah Dobson (Performance Advisor – 
Corporate and Customer). 
 
Democratic Services Officer : 
Ruth Hawes (Assistant Democratic Services 
Officer). 
 

Likely Budget Requirements: 
 

Purpose                                      £200.00 
 
 
 
Total                                            £200.00 
 

Target Body1 for Findings/Recommendations  
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Executive Cabinet. 
 
 
 

                                                           
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 6



 

T
A

S
K

1
. 

T
O

P
IC

 

S
E

L
E

C
T

E
D

2
. 

S
C

O
P

E
 

IN
Q

U
IR

Y

3
. 

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
 

E
V

ID
E

N
C

E

4
. 

C
O

N
S

ID
E

R
 

E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 

5
. 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 

6
. 

F
E

E
D

B
A

C
K

&
 A

C
T

IO
N

7
. 

M
O

N
IT

O
R

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 

2
0

0
7

M
a

r
A

p
r

M
a

y
J

u
n

J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e

p
O

c
t

M
a

y
J

u
n

e

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 G

a
in

s
 

2
0

0
8

N
o

v
D

e
c

A
p

ri
l

J
a

n
F

e
b

M
a

r

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 7



Agenda Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

SCRUTINY INQUIRY INFORMATION CHECKLIST 
 

 

Name of Inquiry: Efficiency Gains  
 
Scrutiny Body: Corporate and Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
 

 
Ref. 

 
Information Required 

 
Date 

 
Venue 

 
1 
 
 

Annual Efficiency Statements (AES).   

 
2 
 
 

Annual Use of Resources Assessments.   

 
3 
 
 

Value for Money (VFM) Strategy.   

 
4 
 
 

Customer Access Strategy.   

 
5 
 
 

Relevant reports to Chorley’s Executive Cabinet.   

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 9



Agenda Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

SCRUTINY INQUIRY WITNESS CHECKLIST 
 

 

Name of Inquiry: Efficiency Gains   
 
Scrutiny Body: Corporate and Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
 

 
Ref. 

 
Witness 

 
Information Required 

 
Date 

 
Venue 

 
1 
 
 

Director of Finance.    

 
2 
 

 
Directors / managers 
as identified through 

the Inquiry. 
 

   

 
3 
 

 
Other Local Authority 
officers as identified 
through the Inquiry. 

 

   

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 11



Agenda Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Overview and Scrutiny Inquiry - A Background to the National Efficiency Agenda
	5 Inquiry Documentation
	DraftEfficiencyProjectPlan
	DraftEfficiencyInfoChecklist
	DraftEfficiencyWitnessChecklist


